
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
June 3, 2010, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 6, 2010 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 


C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence 
 (1) Letter dated May 14th from the Foundation of Fair Contracting (FFC) re 


KAT Construction and Response dated May 19, 2010 from the District 







 
Please note: Correspondence received regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda 
is not itemized here, but will be attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and 
addressed with that item during the Board meeting. 


 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 


the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Sonoma County Water Agency re (SCWA) Petition for 


Permanent and Temporary Urgency Change of Decision 1610 and the District’s 
filed Protest (Est. time 20 min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-11, Providing for Destruction of Certain 


District Records  (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-12, Ordering an Election to be Held and 


Requesting Consolidation with the November 2, 2010 General District Election 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Unneeded District lands strategy (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re RFP results for auditing services for FY 2009-10, FY 2010-


11, and FY 2011-12 (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action Re 2011 and 2012 CIP 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Est. time: 15 min.) 
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
 (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 40 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of 


Section 54956.9.   
  Name of case:  John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros, et al. 
    SCV 240790 
 
 B. Conference with re Real Property Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.8) 
  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack; Property negotiator: Unknown 
  Under negotiation: Terms and price 
 
 C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator:  Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization:  Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 


 2







 3


 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
May 6, 2010 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Wanda Smith 
   
Board Members Absent: (None.) 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Mike Gogna, District Counsel. 
      Brenda Adelman 
      Lee Torr, IV 
      Dennis O’Leary 
      Ken Wells 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Robb-Wilder 
seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the April 1, 2010 Board Meeting and the April 21, 
2010 Special Board Meeting 


 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 


 1







C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence (None) 
 
D. Adoption by reading of title only Ordinance 44, Making Changes to Policy 


Numbers 3020, 3080, and 3090 of the District’s Policy and Procedures Providing 
for Remedies for water Bill Non-Payment and Meter Tampering 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.) 


A. (6:33 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Sonoma County Water Agency re (SCWA) Petition 
for Permanent and Temporary Urgency Change of Decision 1610 and what action, 
if any, the District should take, including presentation by Brenda Adelman.  Brenda 
Adelman, Russian River Watershed Protection Committee, made a presentation.  The 
GM provided additional comments.  Public comment was made by Lee Torr, IV.  Public 
comment was made by Dennis O’Leary.  Board discussion ensued.  Comments were 
made by legal counsel Mike Gogna.  Public comment was made by Brenda Adelman.  
Further discussion ensued.  The GM made additional comments.   


 Direction was given to staff to file a formal Protest to SCWA’s Petition with the State 
Water Resources Control Board that would follow the recommendations of the District’s 
water rights attorney, but sharing with him the Board’s desire to keep flows at 125 cfs.   


B. (7:25 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-09, Approving the Construction 
Project Budget and Authorizing the Award of Contract with KAT Construction for 
CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2, in the sum of $938,640.00 and Authorizing the General 
Manager Total Change Order Approval of $93,864 and Single Change Order 
Approval of up to $25,000.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Director Wikle 
moved to approve Resolution 10-09, Approving the Construction Project Budget and 
Authorizing the Award of Contract with KAT Construction for CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2, 
in the sum of $938,640.00 and Authorizing the General Manager Total Change Order 
Approval of $93,864 and Single Change Order Approval of up to $25,000.  Director 
Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.      


C. (7:32 p.m.) Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 10-10, Adopting the FY 
2010-11 Operating and Capital Improvement Budget.  The GM made a PowerPoint 
presentation.  Board discussion ensued.  At 7:44 p.m. President Quigley opened the 
Public Hearing.  There were no comments.  At 7:45 p.m. President Quigley closed the 
Public Hearing.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 10-10, Adopting the 
FY 2010-11 Operating and Capital Improvement Budget.  Director Smith seconded.  
Motion carried 5-0.   


D. (7:46 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Actual vs. Budgeted expenditures (3rd Quarter, FY 
2009-10, Operating and Capital) and Monthly financial documents reviewed by the 
Board.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Direction was 
given to staff to implement the proposed monthly financial presentation to see how it 
works.  


E. (7:58 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Unneeded District lands strategy.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Comments were made by District 
counsel Mike Gogna.  Public comment was made by Dennis O’Leary.  Public comment 
was made by Ken Wells.  Further discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by 
Dennis O’Leary.  No action was taken.  


 
 


 2







VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:26 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided an overview and answered Board questions on the following subjects: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Rainfall 
5. CIP IV-B, Project 1 
6. CIP IV-B, Project 2 
7. Toilet Rebate Program 
8. Gantt Chart 
9. In-House Construction projects 
10. SCWA water quality study 
11. LAFCO Board opening 
 
Board questions ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:35 p.m.) 


 
Director Smith announced the grant funding had been obtained for the Equestrian Park  
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:35 p.m.) 
 
At 8:36 p.m. President Quigley announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:36 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 9:02 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
action on the Closed Session item was announced: 
 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 
of Section 54956.9 


 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros., et al.  
    SCV 240790 
  No action was taken. 
 


B. Conference with Real Property Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.8) 


 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
 District negotiator: Steve Mack; Property negotiator: Unknown 
 Under negotiation: Terms and price  


  No action was taken. 
 
 C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957.6): 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
  No action was taken. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:03 p.m.) 
 
1. Surplus lands 
2. SCWA Protest 
 


 3







 4


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:03 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:26 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:35 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:35 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of Section 54956.9

		 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros., et al. 

		B. Conference with Real Property Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.8)

		 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville

		 District negotiator: Steve Mack; Property negotiator: Unknown

		 Under negotiation: Terms and price 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:03 p.m.)

		ADJOURN
























		CCF05282010_00007

		CCF05282010_00008

		CCF05282010_00009

		CCF05282010_00010

		CCF05282010_00011











SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : June 3, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY (SCWA) PETITION TO CHANGE 
WATER RIGHTS DECISION 1610    
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a staff presentation regarding the SCWA 
petition to change Water Rights Decision 1610 (D1610) and related Russian River 
activities. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  no significant costs expected.   


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
At the May meeting the Board directed that a protest be filed to the Petition to Change 
D1610.  That protest was mailed to the State Board on May 10, 2010 and was delivered 
to the State Board on May 11. We have had no response to our protest.   
 
Related Activities: 
 


• The Temporary Urgency Change Petition (TUC) was approved by the State Board 
on May 24, 2010.  The Board Order approving the TUC allows for flows at 70 cfs 
at the Hacienda gage.  SCWA will hold a public meeting on the TUC and related 
summer meetings at Odd Fellows Hall in Guerneville on June 9.  The notice for 
this meeting was sent to Board Members on May 25th.  


 
• SCWA held a meeting on May 19th at Jenner to discuss summer activities at the 


mouth of the Russian River and to have a formal Notice of Preparation meeting 
for the EIR for the Estuary Management Plan.  The Estuary Management Plan is 
largely an attempt to keep the sand barrier at the mouth of the Russian River at 
7 feet above mean high tide (I think that’s the elevation) through the summer 
period, plus a number of studies to evaluate the impact of doing so.   


 
Observations: 
 


• It’s unclear how the protest process will work.  Information on the petition 
process supplied by the District’s water rights attorney, Matt Emrick, states that 
the petitioner has 30 days to respond and 180 days to work out a resolution to 
the protest.  However, there are reported hundreds of protests to this petition 
and that may overwhelm the official time periods.   


 
• The BO with its requirements that SCWA apply to the State Board for flow 


changes is largely experimental.  The reduction in flows required by the BO is 







SCWA PETITION TO CHANGE D1610    2   
June 3, 2010                                                                 


 


based on the belief that lower summer flows will result in an intact sand barrier 
for the summer, but there is no evidence that has been shared with the public 
that supports any particularly flow level keeping the sand barrier intact.   One 
course of action might be to allow a certain amount of time for experimentation – 
allow SCWA to try different flow levels and schemes to keep the barrier intact, 
and once successful, try to determine if keeping the sand barrier intact actually 
helps with salmonid survival (also unproven).  Once a clearly workable and 
successful strategy has been developed, then proceed with permanent regulatory 
approvals.  This strategy would also include analyses of Russian River water 
supplies to determine what flow strategies can meet water supply demands.   


 
• The BO approach is a one size fits all years strategy.  This year and last year 


demonstrate that approach doesn’t fit reality.  The natural, unsupported flow this 
year will be well above the TUC minimum flows well into July (and likely August if 
it doesn’t stop raining soon, see Figure 1 for a flow projection).  SCWA and NMFS 
should be working with the available water this year to see how and whether the 
sand barrier can be maintained during higher flows.   


 


Figure 1.  Russian River Summer Flow 2010
Hacienda Bridge, Updated May 27, 2010


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


1,600


1-M
ay


8-M
ay


15
-M


ay


22
-M


ay


29
-M


ay
5-J


un


12
-Ju


n
19


-Ju
n


26
-Ju


n
3-J


ul


10
-Ju


l


17
-Ju


l


24
-Ju


l


31
-Ju


l
7-A


ug


14
-Aug


21
-Aug


28
-Aug


4-S
ep


11
-Sep


18
-Sep


25
-Sep


2-O
ct


Projected 2010 is logarythmic curve based on May 1- May 25 daily flow


Fl
ow


 (c
fs


)


2009
2007
2000-08 Avg
2010
Projected 2010


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


 





		Meeting Date : June 3, 2010 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: June 3, 2010 Subject: Destruction of Records 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 10-11, Providing for Destruction of Certain District Records. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


Approximately $250.  
 


 
DISCUSSION: 


Resolution 10-11 provides a one-time authorization to destroy the records identified.  The time periods 
reflected in the Resolution are similar to those approved in previous years.  
 







Resolution No. 10-11 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR DESTRUCTION OF CERTAIN 


DISTRICT RECORDS 
 


 WHEREAS, the District is desirous of destroying those records not required to be 
maintained by law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District’s Policies and Procedures do not provide complete 
guidelines for the destruction of records. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the General Manager be 
authorized to destroy the following records: 


 


Record Retained 
Period 


Destroy Records 
Older Than . . .  


Bank Deposit Reports (daily) 2 years July 1, 2008 
Bank Statements 5 years July 1, 2005 
Budget Working Papers 3 years July 1, 2007 
Tax/Unemployment Records 4 years July 1, 2006 
Payroll expanded detail 5 years July 1, 2005 
Conflict of Interest 
Statements 


4 years July 1, 2006 


Customer Paper Files 3 years July 1, 2007 
Customer Receipts/ Payment 
Stubs 


2 years July 1, 2008 


Attendance records 2 years December 31, 2008 
Field Production Reports 5 years July 1, 2005 
Meter reading books 7 years July 1, 2003 
Leak Tags 2 years July 1, 2008 
Vendor files 5 years July 1, 2005 
Assessment files 7 years July 1, 2003 
Job Recruitment/ Applications 2 years July 1, 2008 
Workers Compensation 
claims 


6 years July 1, 2004 


Tapes of Board Meetings 5 years 
(pursuant to 


existing District 
policy) 


July 1, 2005 


 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any records within the time periods identified 
above which are necessary to resolve an outstanding claim or litigation shall be retained. 


***************************** 







Resolution 10-11  2  
June 3, 2010 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of 
the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on June 3, 2010, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Wanda Smith        
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 





		Item V-B - Destruction of Records

		Approximately $250. 



		Item V-B.1 RES 10-11 -- Destruction of Records






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date : June 3, 2010 Subject: District Election – November, 2010 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 10-12, Ordering an Election to be Held and Requesting Consolidation with the 
November 2, 2010, General Election, and limit the Statement of Qualifications to no more than 200 
words with the costs to be paid by the candidate in advance to the District Secretary. 


 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


The estimated cost is $4,000.  Candidates will be required to pay for their own (optional) Statement of 
Qualifications at an estimated cost of $160 each based on a 200-word statement.  
 


 
DISCUSSION: 


The terms of Directors Schaap, Smith, and Robb-Wilder will expire on December 3, 2010.  The 
nomination period for interested candidates in these open Board seats -- including incumbents -- is 
July 12 – August 6, 2010.  All candidates must file a Declaration of Candidacy with the Registrar of 
Voters.  If a candidate opts to file a Statement of Qualifications, it must be filed at the same time as 
other nomination documents.  
 
Attached is Resolution 10-12 for your consideration.  The recommended action is consistent with past 
Board policy on the election.  
 









		Item V-C - Res 10-12 re November elections

		The estimated cost is $4,000.  Candidates will be required to pay for their own (optional) Statement of Qualifications at an estimated cost of $160 each based on a 200-word statement. 



		Item V-C.1 - RES 10-12 Ordering Election to be Held






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : June 3, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE UNNEEDED DISTRICT LANDS   
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation on the progress of the Land 
Management Committee and Other Activities regarding Unneeded District Lands and 
provide direction to the Committee and General Manager.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impact. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Land Management Committee held a meeting on May 14 to discuss next steps with 
the District Unneeded Lands Strategy.  The focus of the meeting was the proposed 
public workshop that was presented as part of the effort in the May meeting 
presentation on this item.  The Committee agreed on the following points: 
 


• The goal of the workshop is to present the District’s strategy to the public and to 
get feedback and proposals from groups in an informal, back and forth setting 
that invites a community discussion. 


• The focus of the workshop would be on the larger parcels. 
• The date of the workshop is proposed for July 22 and start time would be 6:30. 


Location could be the Monte Rio Community Center (assuming availability).   
• Community outreach is necessary to make this a successful meeting.  This would 


include: 
o Information on Website 
o Press release 
o Direct email contact with possible interested groups 


• A successful outcome would be conceptual proposals for a number of parcels 
from groups that the Board could feel comfortable directing staff to with.  
 


With Board concurrence, staff will work to make this workshop a success. 
 
During the past month, the General Manager took a field investigation of the large 
parcels behind the Monte Rio Terraces with engineers from Peter Lescure Engineers to 
recon the parcels’ suitability for wastewater disposal.  There is suitable land, but the 
elevation of the lands would make this a costly approach for wastewater disposal.    





		Meeting Date : June 3, 2010 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: June 3, 2010 
  
SUBJECT: RFP RESULTS FOR AUDITING SERVICES 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Review RFP results and select an auditor to conduct District audits for FY 2009-10 thru FY 
2011-12. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


Depending on who is chosen, the cost for the three years will be $19,494 - $33,900.  
 
DISCUSSION: 


On the recommendation of legal counsel and concurrence of the Board, staff conducted an 
RFP for an auditor to perform the District’s financial audit for FY 2009-10, FY 2010-11, and 
FY 2011-12.  RFP packets were sent to nine firms.  Three firms submitted proposals by the 
May 21 deadline.  Below is a table summarizing their bids: 
 


RFP Results Summary 


Firm FY 2009-10 FY 2010-11 FY 2011-12 TOTAL for all three 
years 


James Marta & Company 
Sacramento, CA 


$10,900 $11,300 $11,700 $33,900.00 


R.J. Ricciardi, Inc. 
San Rafael, CA 


$9,800 $9,800 $9,800 $29,400.00 


Moss, Levy & Hartzheim 
Beverly Hills, CA 


$6,498 $6,498 $6,498 $19,494.00 


 
Our current auditor, Michael Celentano, charged the District $5,700 for the FY 2008-09 audit.  
While the next three years’ audits will be more expensive than the past 6 years with Mr. 
Celentano, the rationale for conducting the RFP is to have our audits reflect a “fresh look” at 
the District’s accounting and finances. 
 
Background information (hard copy only) for each of the firms is attached for your review.  
Complete copies of the proposal have been reviewed by the District’s Budget Committee 
(Director Robb-Wilder and Director Schaap) and staff.  In addition, staff has contacted two 







RFP Results for Auditing Services  2 
June 3, 2010 


water districts – one of them Valley of the Moon -- audited by the low bidder Moss, Levy & 
Hartzheim, and both were very satisfied with the work and timeliness of that firm.   
 
It is recommended that the Board authorize staff to send a letter of acceptance to one of the 
firms above.  
 





		Depending on who is chosen, the cost for the three years will be $19,494 - $33,900. 

		FY 2011-12








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : June 3, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING 2011 AND 2012 CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM     
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a staff presentation regarding the 2011 and 2012 
Capital Improvement Program. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  no significant additional costs expected.   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
CIP IV-B, Project 2 Increase.  The bid for CIP IV-B, Project 2, which is in the 
District’s FY 11 capital budget, came in over $400,000 below the engineer’s estimate of 
probable cost.  The terms of the 75% grant with the Sonoma County Community 
Development Commission (CDC) are such that the District pays 25% of the total 
estimated project cost (District share is $420,000) and CDC picks up the rest, not to 
exceed the total project cost of $1,515,000.  CDC staff have encouraged the District to 
identify additional work that can utilize the unused grant funding.  Staff can be doing 
that during the month of June with the expectation that we can bring a proposed 
project to the Board for the July meeting and to the Russian River Redevelopment 
Oversight Committee for their review at their July meeting.   
 
Initial staff analysis of available funding is that approximately $260,000 is available for 
a construction contract (design and construction management would be additional 
costs).  None of the existing approved CIP project elements fit that amount.  One 
possible needed project that does fit that amount is main replacement on Rio Vista 
Terrace in Monte Rio which has old pipe and one place in particular where the main has 
surfaced in the road.  With Board concurrence, staff will work to try to add this project 
to the CIP IV-B, Project 2 CDC funding grant.    
 
Changing the CIP Naming Convention.  The Sweetwater Springs Water District 
naming for capital improvement projects is now on CIP IV-B, Project 2.  This convention 
is hard to track historically because the Roman numerals don’t necessarily fit with any 
particular historical year or event, and all of us consistently get confused as to what 
project we are talking about.  After discussions with staff, we are recommending that 
the naming convention for capital improvement projects be based on fiscal year.  
Following this convention our next CIP project, which is scheduled to start after July 1, 
2011 in Fiscal Year 2011-2012 (also called Fiscal Year 2012) and which includes 
replacement of 3,100 lf of existing main and appurtenances on Western, Eastern and 
Northern Avenues and Orchard Lane at the end of Drake Road, and installation of 1,000 
lf of new 8 – inch main and appurtenances from B Street northwesterly to end of 







Discussion Re 2011 and 2012 CIP    2   
June 3, 2010                                                                 


 


existing 8 – inch main and make connection to other side of Foothill where section of 
road is closed to through traffic on Foothill Drive in Monte Rio, will be called CIP 2012.  
The capital program for the following year will be called CIP 2013, and so on.   
 
Request for Proposals for Design and Construction Management Services for 
the Fiscal Year 2011-2012 Capital Projects.  It is a good business practice to solicit 
proposals for engineering services on a periodic basis to ensure that the District is 
getting good quality and value in its design and construction management services. 
Staff plans to conduct a request for proposals process for these engineering services for 
CIP 2012 this summer so that CIP 2012 can be advertised for start of construction in 
early FY 2012 (after July 2011).  Brelje and Race Engineers has done the design and 
construction management services for the last four capital projects – CIP IV-A, Projects 
1 and 2, and CIP IV-B, Projects 1 and 2, and staff has been very happy with their work.   
 
It is important to note that state law states that selection of engineering services should 
be based on qualifications, although value of the services can be a consideration.   
 
Community Development Commission (CDC) Russian River Project Area Needs 
Assessment.  CDC is reaching out to the community to find out what projects are 
being planned for the Russian River Redevelopment Project Area.  Special districts in 
the area, including Sweetwater Springs Water District, have been asked to provide a list 
of planned projects for the next 20 years. We don’t have a list of projects for the next 
20 years, but we have been identifying needed projects.  The District has an approved 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for 2010 through 2015.  The 2010 and 2011 CIP 
projects are currently under construction (2010, CIP IV-B, Project 1) or under contract 
for construction (2011, CIP (IV-B, Project 2).   Staff has planned to revisit the CIP next 
fall to extend it to 2017 or more.  The needs assessment survey forms (one form for 
each project) is due July 9.  My intention is to list all projects on the approved CIP 
(years 2012 through 2015) and list other projects staff have put on a list we were 
preparing for next fall with the recognition that other projects may be identified later 
on.  Exhibit 1 shows the list of projects identified as of the writing of this report.  Staff 
intend to put these projects in the CDC survey form and get them into the consultant 
doing the project prior to the July 9 deadline.   







Exhibit 1. Future Sweetwater Springs Water District Capital 
Improvement Projects 


June 2010 
 
Capital improvements are an important element of the District’s work effort.  
The District has an aging infrastructure, an unacceptable amount of unaccounted 
for water and District staff spend too much time reacting to leaks in the 
distribution system.  The District approved the 2010-2015 Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) in September 2009 but needs to identify projects with a further 
out time horizon.  The approved CIP projects have costs identified by B&R 
Engineers.  The non-approved future CIP project costs are based on $400/lineal 
foot of water main replacement, the projects have not been prioritized, and, of 
course, are subject to further review and change. 
 
Prospective capital projects were identified using the following criteria: 
 


• Number of leaks. 
• District time dedicated to repair the leaks. 
• Costs per Customer. 
• Potential Liability to the District. 
• Storage and booster stations based upon system requirements for fire 


flow, and storage requirements. 
• Impacts to the optimum operation of the system. 
• Elimination of as many dead-end lines as possible, which affect both 


water quality and pressure. 
 
 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Possible Future CIP Projects by 
Year 


 Approved CIP  
Year Projects Estimated Cost
2012    


  


Western, Eastern and Northern Avenues and Orchard 
Lane (GV) -  Replace 3,100 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances. $684,000 


  


Foothill Drive (MR) – Install 1,000 lf of new 8 – inch 
main and appurtenances from B Street northwesterly 
to end of existing 8 – inch main and make connection 
to other side of Foothill where section of road is closed 
to through traffic.   $671,000 


     
  2012 Total $1,355,000 
2013    







Possible Future CIP Projects 2  
June 2010 


 


  


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 5,800 lf of existing 
main and appurtenances commencing at the Handy 
Andy Booster and proceeding westerly. 


$936,000 


  


Canyon Seven Rd (GV) – Eliminate dead end mains 
and create loops by installing 1,950 lf of new main and 
appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd between Sequoia 
Rd and Paradise Ln.   $329,000 


     
  2013 Total $1,265,000 
2014    


  
Hidden Valley Rd (GV) – Replace 3,900 lf of existing 
main and appurtenances on Hidden Valley Rd. $656,000 


  


Guernewood Lane (GV) - – Replace 1,800 lf of existing 
main and appurtenances and abandon 200 lf of 
redundant 4 – inch main along Hwy 116. $318,000 


     
  2014 Total $974,000 
2015    


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage tank with a 
nominal capacity of approximately 120,000 gallons at the 
District–owned site on McLane Avenue. Project to include 
relocation/ construction of the existing hydro-pneumatic 
pump station. $490,000 


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 gallon 
storage tank with a 30,000 storage tank.   2005 cost 
estimate 


$190,000 


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 10,000 gallon 
tank with a 30,000 gallon storage tank.  2005 cost 
estimate 


$127,000 


  2015 Total $807,000 
     
  Total Approved Post 2011 CIP $4,401,000 
  


 Possible Future Projects, Not Prioritized 
Approximate 


Cost (@$400/lf)


 


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line replacement. 
(GV)    Replace approximately 2,000 ft of existing 
mainline and 31 associated services along Highland 
Way, Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, Laurel Way. 
(requires completion of Schoeneman Tank) $800,000


 
Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. 
(GV)Replace approximately 1,900 ft of existing $760,000







Possible Future CIP Projects 3  
June 2010 


 


mainline and 27 associated services along Woodland 
Dr in the main pressure zone.  (requires completion of 
Schoeneman Tank) 


 


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV) 
    Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing mainline 
and 47 associated services along Wright Dr, Glenda 
Dr, Natoma Dr. (requires completion of Natoma 
Tank) $1,312,000


 


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
    Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing mainline 
and 18 associated services along Wright Dr. and 
Wright Ln.  (requires completion of Natoma Tank) $448,000


 


Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace approximately 3,900 
ft of existing mainline and 75 services along Canyon 1 
Rd., Memory Ln., Memory Park Rd. $1,560,000


 
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 ft of 
mainline along Main St. $320,000


 
Highway 116 (MR) 
Replace approximately 850 ft of main line.  $340,000


 
Rio Vista Terrace (MR) Replace approximately 
1100 ft of main line. $440,000


 
Total Approximate Cost of Future, Unapproved 
Projects $5,980,000


 
 
 





		Item V-F 2012 CIP Discussion

		Meeting Date : June 3, 2010 



		Item V-F.1 Exhibit 1. Future Capital Improvement Program6-10






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: June 3, 2010  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.  


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in April were 14,273 units (32.8 


AF) and production was 53.9 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and 
production are both substantially less (36.4 and 71.1 AF, respectively).  
System losses decreased to 28% which is still high.  The attached Figure 1 
shows the 12 month moving averages since 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  The District spends much staff time addressing leaks and we have 


an extensive capital program to replace water mains to reduce leaks in the 
system.  In April we had 20 total leaks and spent 56 man-hours on them.   
That’s fewer leaks and man-hours than last month (March) and April one 
year ago (26 leaks, 109 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows leak history and man-
hours spent dealing with leaks since 2001 and has bounced back to the 
declining trend for both leaks and man hours.     


 
4. Rainfall.  Figure 3 is the rainfall chart for this year starting in October.    


May rainfall has been above average for the month, again.  January, of 
course, was the month that drove the good results for this year and this 
remains a positive rainfall year.   We are not currently at average in 
Guerneville, according to my calculations, but the Guerneville area is over 
50 inches for the year, the Russian River watershed is well hydrated, and 
the Russian River reservoirs are full. 


 
5. CIP IV-B, Project 1.  W.A. Forde Associates has completed mainlining on 


Riverlands Road and is starting on Bonita Terrace during the week of May 
24. 


 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
June 3, 2010 


6. CIP IV-B, Project 2.  This contract was awarded to KAT Construction at the 
May 6 meeting. No further progress has been reported at this time.  


 
7. Toilet Rebate Program.  9 toilet rebates were issued in May as of the date 


of this report at a total cost of $1,350.   
 


8. In-House Construction Projects.  As of May 26, staff had done 4 in-house 
construction projects with a total estimated man-hours of 30.25.  The 
majority of the time was spent relocating a service on Old Cazadero Road.   


 
9. Gantt Chart.   June in the Gantt Chart shows CIP IV-B, Project 1 


construction should be underway and it is; that the 2010 Urban Water 
Management Plan should be started, it is not, but I have looked 
unsuccessfully for information on the Plan format; labor negotiations 
completed, they are not, but I believe we are making progress.       


  
 


  


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Average
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


May-
01


Nov-
01


May-
02


Nov-
02


May-
03


Nov-
03


May-
04


Nov-
04


May-
05


Nov-
05


May-
06


Nov-
06


May-
07


Nov-
07


May-
08


Nov-
08


May-
09


Nov-
09


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


40.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
June 3, 2010 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Total Pipeline Breaks 
and Hours Spent in Repair, Moving Annual Average


150


200


250


300


350


400


450


500
B


re
ak


s


1,050


1,400


1,750


2,100


2,450


2,800


3,150


3,500


H
ou


rs


Total Breaks
Total Hours
Linear (Total Hours)
Linear (Total Breaks)


-


50


100


Dec
-00


Apr-
01


Aug
-01


Dec
-01


Apr-
02


Aug
-02


Dec
-02


Apr-
03


Aug
-03


Dec
-03


Apr-
04


Aug
-04


Dec
-04


Apr-
05


Aug
-05


Dec
-05


Apr-
06


Aug
-06


Dec
-06


Apr-
07


Aug
-07


Dec
-07


Apr-
08


Aug
-08


Dec
-08


Apr-
09


Aug
-09


Dec
-09


Apr-
10


-


350


700


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2010







Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09 Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 2011 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2009 Water Rates Revision Completed
2009 Water Rates Changes


•        Board Direction on Rate Changes
•        Prop 218 Mailing
•        Public Hearing on Proposed Rates
•        Adopt Rates with Budget


2009-10 Budget preparation Completed
2010-11 Budget preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-10


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-10


•        Approve Budget May-10
Capital Projects


•        CIP IV-A, Project 1 Completion Completed, 
June 09


•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Construction Start May-09
•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Completion October-09
•        Phase IV-B Design January-09
•        Presentation of CIP Phase IV-B for Board 
Discussion/Action


February-09


•        RRROC for CIP IV-B July-09
•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


2010 Urban Water Management Plan December-10


Water Rights Completed, 
License June 


Contract Negotiations 
•        Start Negotiations Preparation December-09
•        Negotiations Start April-10
•        End of Contract June-10


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-11


Policies and Procedures
•        Capacity Charge Policy
•        Budget Reserve Policy
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives July-10


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: June 3, 2010 



